|
Z 5 CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public meeting of

Decision Session - Executive Member for Environment and Climate

Emergency
To: Councillor Kent
Date: Tuesday, 20 May 2025
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: West Offices - Station Rise, York YO1 6GA
AGENDA

Notice to Members — Post Decision Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on
this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 4:00 pm
on Wednesday, 28 May 2025.

*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a
previous call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent, which are
not subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be
considered by the Corporate Services, Climate Change and Scrutiny
Management Committee.

Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00 pm on Friday, 16 May
2025.



Apologies for Absence
To receive and note apologies for absence.

Declarations of Interest (Pages 7 - 8)
At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to
declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other registerable
interest, they might have in respect of business on this agenda, if
they have not already done so in advance on the Register of
Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it
becomes apparent to the member during the meeting.

[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members].

Minutes (Pages 9 - 14)
To approve and sign the minutes of the Decision Session held on
29 April 2025.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the Committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at our meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Friday, 16
May 2025.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration
form or the meeting, please contact Democratic Services.
Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.



http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we made some changes to how we ran
council meetings, including facilitating remote participation by
public speakers. See our updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on
meetings and decisions.

5. North Yorkshire & York, Local Nature Recovery (Pages 15 - 24)
Strategy (LNRS) consultation draft
This report briefly sets out the process of developing the North
Yorkshire and York Local Nature Recovery Strategies to date,
following a new system of spatial strategies for nature recovery
legislated for in the Environment Act 2021.

6. Urgent Business
Any other business which the Executive Member considers
urgent under the Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer: Reece Williams
Telephone: 01904 55 4447
Email: reece.williams@york.gov.uk



http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy
mailto:reece.williams@york.gov.uk

Reasonable Adjustments and Alternative formats statement

To request reasonable adjustments or to provide this document in an alternative
language or format such as large print, braille, audio, Easy Read or BSL, you can:

Email us at: cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk

Call us: 01904 551550 and customer services will pass your
request onto the Access Team.

Use our BSL Video Relay Service:
www.vork.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService

Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu.

We can also translate into the following languages:

A PR MOESRAUSEER Canonese)
<% T TR TR SMEY o7 (NS YIF | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

sk Rl (Polish}

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almamz mumkindiir. (Turkish)

of, o A . v
e e ol IS e T . (Urdu)

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.




(1)

Page 5

Declarations of Interest — guidance for Members

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

You must

Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary

Disclose the interest, not participate
in the discussion or vote, and leave
the meeting unless you have a
dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Disclose the interest; speak on the
item only if the public are also
allowed to speak, but otherwise not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless
the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being:

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interest or well-being of
a majority of inhabitants of the
affected ward; and

(b) a reasonable member of the
public knowing all the facts would
believe that it would affect your view
of the wider public interest.

In which case, speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak, but otherwise do not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Agenda Item 2

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or
their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations,



Page 6

and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992.



Page 7 Agenda Item 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for
Environment and Climate Emergency

Date 29 April 2025

Present Councillor Kent

Officers in James Gilchrist - Director of Environment,

attendance Transport and Planning
Dave Meigh - Operations Manager - Public
Realm

lan Hoult - Head of Environmental Services

23. Apologies for Absence (10:00am)

No apologies for absence were received.

24. Declarations of Interest (10:00am)

At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member was asked to
declare if he had any personal interests not included on the Register
of Interests or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests that
they might have had in relation to the business on the agenda. None
were declared.

25. Minutes (10:01am)

Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session held on 18
March 2025 be approved and signed by the Executive
Member as a correct record.



Page 8

26. Public Participation (10:01am)

It was reported that there had been three registrations to speak at the
session under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

Bill Hill spoke on item 4, Public Realm — Service Developments, on
behalf of the Friends of York Walls (FOYW) and discussed the
ramparts of the city walls, and how these could contribute to
wildflower objectives and carbon targets. He stated that the plants
which were being used by FOYW had been approved by an ecologist
from City of York Council (CYC) and were native and non-evasive
pollinator-friendly flowers.

Andrew Mortimer spoke on item 4, Public Realm — Service
Developments, and discussed the provision of larger litter bins and
the need for them in outer areas of the city, such as Hull Road Park,
as well as the city centre. He also discussed the importance of
maintaining short sightlines on verges adjacent road junctions to
improve safety.

Councillor Waller spoke on item 4, Public Realm — Service
Developments, and discussed the issue of vacancies within the
Public Realm team, and the need for clarity within communications
regarding what garden assistance residents could receive throughout
the year. He also mentioned, and thanked, volunteers who actively
engaged with improving wildflower areas.

The Executive Member confirmed that she had received a written
representation by David Alexander in relation to item 4, Public Realm
— Service Developments, of which had been published alongside the
agenda.



Page 9

27. Public Realm - Service Developments (10:14am)

The Director of Environment, Transport and Planning, the Operations
Manager - Public Realm, and the Head of Environmental Services
presented the report and noted that it was an update on the report
that was received by the Executive Member on 27 February 2024. It
was reported that this report outlined plans similar to those seen in
other cities across the UK.

It was noted that the report was done in response to two petitions that
had been received by CYC and the Director of Environment,
Transport and Planning, the Operations Manager - Public Realm, and
the Head of Environmental Services noted that CYC had worked with
various local groups, such as FOYW, on the themes discussed in the
report. Local groups would be worked with to determine how green
spaces would be improved, and to find common ground, it was
understood that many areas would not look the same as they did
historically, but that many improvements could be made for inclusivity
and accessibility, such as the transformation of historic bowling green
areas to informal kickabout areas for public use.

In response to issues raised within Public Participation, the Director of
Environment, Transport and Planning, the Operations Manager -
Public Realm, and the Head of Environmental Services noted that the
practice of holding vacancies was no longer being done, but had
happened in recent years as a budgetary measure; all posts were
now filled as of the date of the decision session, and agency workers
had been used to fill vacancies in the past. Officers also thanked
volunteers who worked with CYC on themes within the report. The
Head of Environmental Services confirmed that improvements for
cutting verges in York were being investigated, and the Executive
Member declared a commitment to the rollout of larger litter bins
across wider areas of the city.

The Executive Member thanked the Public Realm and Waste teams
for their work, and discussed the work of volunteers within the city,
especially on work reducing the amount of glyphosate in their local
areas.

The Executive Member concluded by stating that a plan on where
grass cutting would and would not occur was necessary for promoting
biodiversity of insects and plants, and that work on the Bar Walls had
been influenced by the Tower of London in order to increase
biodiversity (it was noted by the Executive Member, that at the time



Page 10

the petitions mentioned in the report were active, this work had not
been started, but was scheduled).

Resolved:

That the Executive Member:

Considered the two petitions received by the Council and
considered if the actions already undertaken and proposals
contained within this report address the concerns raised.

Reason: To inform the future direction in the management of
parks, open spaces and the Bar Walls to ensure they are
managed appropriately and that the council can work with
relevant groups to deliver these changes.

Noted the outcomes of the weed treatment programme in 2024
and approved the recommended approach for 2025, and future
years, to continue with two applications, as set out in the report,
and work with contractors to reduce the amount of glyphosate
used in the treatment of weeds across the city.

Reason: To note the progress towards reducing the amount of
glyphosate used in the treatment of weeds across the city
delivering on the Council Plan.

Noted the content of the report and supported the changes
proposed in the report in respect of the management of verges
and open space in selected areas.

Reason: To build climate resilience and adaptation to climate
change and improve the biodiversity of our green spaces by
determining how these spaces will be managed in the future;
recognising the importance of maintaining and looking after our
city but that not all changes can be made immediately.

Noted the content of the report and supported the expansion of
sustainable planting across the city.

Reason: Sustainable and pollinator friendly planting is the
Councils adopted policy.



Page 11

V. Noted that a separate report would be brought forward on the
Parks Investment Fund detailing how this new budget would be
used for the effective management and maintenance of the
park’s assets. The fund would also be used to make
improvements to parks and open space across the city but
particularly to deliver the Council's ambition to have more
Green Flag parks.

Reason: To inform the future direction in the management of
parks, open spaces to ensure they are managed appropriately
and that the council can work with relevant groups to deliver
these changes.

Cllr Kent, Executive Member
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 10.36 am].



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda ltem 5

Q‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Meeting: Decision Session - Executive Member for
Environment and Climate Emergency

Meeting date: 20 May 2025

Report of: Director of Transport, Environment and Planning
Portfolio of: Councillor Kent, Executive Member for
Environment and Climate Emergency

Decision Report: North Yorkshire and York Local
Nature Recovery Strategy, Pre-Consultation Draft

Subject of Report

1. There is a new system of spatial strategies for nature recovery,
legislated for in the Environment Act 2021. These are called Local
Nature Recovery Strategies (LNRS). The strategy for the Council’s
geography is called North Yorkshire and York Local Nature
Recovery Strategy (referred to here as NYY-LNRS, or the
Strategy). It's production is led by North Yorkshire Council (NYC),
with support from the Council.

2.  This report briefly sets out the process of developing the NYY-
LNRS to date, to demonstrate an appropriate process has been
carried out during this time.

3.  The Council is about to receive final parts of a pre-consultation
draft of the Strategy (the same documents are intended to be used
for a public consultation). We will then be at a stage where under
LNRS Regulations 2023, the Council can give our support or
objections to a decision by NYC to publicly consult on the draft
Strategy. This report asks for a decision on the Council’s position
to be delegated to Head of Strategic Planning Policy.

4.  Other than the above considerations, this report does not consider
details of the draft Strategy. Subject to the Council not objecting at
this stage, it is intended that detailed Council comments on the
draft Strategy will be provided to NYC at a later date during June.
This report asks for submission of comments to be delegated to
Head of Strategic Planning Policy.



Page 14

Benefits and Challenges

5.  The benefits and challenges concerning the recommended
decisions of this report are as follows:

6. Report recommendation

I The Council’s decision about whether to support NYC
consulting on the draft Strategy should be on LNRS
Regulations 2023 grounds.

7. Pertinent regulations are:

“A supporting authority that has been provided with a consultation
draft of a local nature recovery strategy under regulation 7 may
raise an objection with the responsible authority about— (a)the
local nature recovery strategy; or (b)the responsible authority’s
preparation of the local nature recovery strategy, including the
extent to which the responsible authority has involved the
supporting authority in that preparation. (2) An objection under
paragraph (1) must— (a)be in writing; (b)give reasons for the
objection; and (c)be given before the expiry of 28 days beginning
with the day on which the responsible authority provided the
supporting authority with the consultation draft of its local nature
recovery Strategy under regulation 7.”

8.  The Council does not yet have full documentation of the draft
Strategy, so at time of the publication of this report, the 28 day
consultation period has not started.

9. Report recommendation ii: The recommendation to delegate
detailed comments on the Strategy are driven by the timing of this
report; the timing of receipt of full documentation; the relatively
short statutory consultation period; and the relatively low risks

10. Refer also to Risks & Mitigations and Options Appraisal sections

Policy Basis for Decision

11. LNRS are a new system of spatial strategies for nature, introduced
in the Environment Act 2021.

12. The Environment, Local Nature Recovery Strategies, Procedure,
Regulations 2023 (LNRS Regulations 2023) sets out detailed
requirements for the production of an LNRS.

13. LNRS has materiality within the statutory planning function. This
was clarified recently by Planning Practice Guidance February
2025.



14.

15.

16.

Page 15

In 2019 the Council declared a Climate Emergency and in 2022
published the Climate Change 10 year strategy.

The Council Plan 2023-27 has a key commitment to “Climate and
Environment”. This commitment is about understanding and
reducing our impacts on the environment. NYY-LNRS is an
overarching regional strategy for delivering nature recovery.
Nature recovery has a key role in achieving these key council
aims.

In addition, the Council Plan sets out four core commitments
known as EACH, with the Climate core commitment recognising
we will enhance our environment for future generations to enjoy.

Financial Strategy Implications

17.

18.

19.

There are no direct financial implications of the development of
NYY-LNRS as a strategy for the Council. The lead authority, NYC
produces the strategy, funded by a Defra grant, and Council
participation/co-production is carried out by existing Council
staffing.

The live phase of the NYY-LNRS as a strategy does not have a
financial impact to the Council. NYC is responsible for review and
monitoring.

The delivery of the NYY-LNRS as an instrument of change does
not currently have a direct finance obligation on landowners. It is a
voluntary scheme (it does not specify land use). However, it
impacts the economics of land use at a high level. For instance, it
IS a material consideration as part of planning applications. For
farming practice, in the long term there will probably be a
correlation between Environmental Land Management Schemes
(ELMS) delivering nature recovery and the LNRS, but this is an
emerging area of policy.



Page 16

Recommendation and Reasons

20.

The Executive Member is asked to:

Note the work that has been undertaken in relation to the
North Yorkshire and York Local Nature Recovery Strategy. To
also agree to delegate authority to the Head of Strategic
Planning Policy to decide and action one of the following
options:

a. to provide written consent to a public consultation on the
draft North Yorkshire and York Local Nature Recovery
Strategy

b. to object to a public consultation on the draft North
Yorkshire and York Local Nature Recovery Strategy in
accordance with the grounds and procedure set out in the
Environment (Local Nature Recovery Strategies)
(Procedure) Regulations 2023

c. to do nothing (thereby allowing the statutory pre-
consultation period to elapse)

...and to confirm to North Yorkshire Council the Council’s
position. This will occur before the expiry of a 28 day statutory
consultation period.

Reasons:

To clarify the Council’s position to North Yorkshire Council, in
respect to the Council’s duties and powers as set out by
LNRS Regulations 2023. The current position is that council
officers have worked closely with North Yorkshire Council on
the emerging draft Strategy and give support to the overall
format of the Strategy and process of its development and so
have no objections to a public consultation. However, officers
have not seen complete draft strategy documentation before
the publication of this report, so require complete
documentation and further time to confirm this position.

To delegate authority to the Head of Strategic Planning Policy
to make any comments on behalf of the Council in response
to the draft North Yorkshire and York Local Nature Recovery
Strategy.

Reasons: For the efficient delivery of the Strategy.



Page 17

Background

21. Government asked NYC and the Council to work closely together
to produce the NYY-LNRS, as both local authority areas share a
common landscape and river network that span their respective
boundaries. Working across administrative boundaries ensures
that nature recovery is more effective where transboundary
features are present. The NYY-LNRS was also prepared in
partnership with the Yorkshire Dales and North York Moors
National Park Authorities and the other organisations in the
advisory group.

22. Defra have appointed NYC as “responsible authority” for the
strategy and the Council are appointed as “support authority”. In
practice this means NYC lead on the production of the strategy.

23. NYC developed a stakeholder engagement plan during summer
2023 to establish governance (working procedures and
accountability). A working group from NYC and Natural England
established a governance model for the NYY-LNRS.

24. The principles of this were included at Council Executive October
2023, and governance/procedure at a Council level was also
agreed. The decision included:

“...Agreed to delegate to The Executive Members for the
Environment and Climate Change Emergency the necessary
Member decisions for the development of the LNRS and that
officers convey those decisions for consideration of NYC as
statutory Authority;...confirmed that whilst not statutory Authority
they wish to reserve the agreement to adopt the LNRS as a key
decision...”

25. As part of this governance the Council continues to be a key
member of advisory boards (at director officer level), as part of the
project team (at officer level) and supporting the advisory topic
groups throughout the preparation of the draft NYY-LNRS.

26. Council Executive Member for Environment and Climate
Emergency has had regular update meetings.

27. Council officers have been actively involved in the determination of
the list opportunities, priorities and measures required to support
nature recovery across the region.

28. The Council has supported the preparation of the NYY-LNRS by
attending monthly steering group meetings and regular workshops
to provide local expert knowledge in relation to nature recovery
priorities for habitat and species within the administrative boundary
of York.



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Page 18

In addition, Council technical officers have undertaken regular
reviews of supporting data used in the preparation of the NYY-
LNRS (i.e. mapping and habitat/species lists) to ensure that they
will achieve objectives of the NYY-LNRS and support nature
recovery within the City of York.

Council officers have seen the emerging draft Strategy structure. It

Is split into five parts (excluding appendices):

1) Thriving Nature in North Yorkshire and York — Non-Technical
Summary

2) Thriving Nature in North Yorkshire and York — Our Local Nature
Recovery Strategy

3) Statement of Biodiversity Priorities Part | — Description of Our
Strategy Area

4) Statement of Biodiversity Priorities Part |l — Priorities and
Measures

5) The Local Habitat Map

Most text documentation for the pre-consultation draft Strategy
was received by the Council on 31 March 2025

Remaining parts of the pre-consultation draft Strategy (including
mapping) are anticipated to be received during week commencing
12 May 2025.

The Council enters a period of 28 days statutory consultation that
commences on the day of receipt of full draft Strategy
documentation. During this period the Council can decide to object
or support NYC carrying out a public consultation on the Strategy.

Current provisional future timetable:
1) Statutory public consultation (six weeks): June 2025

2) Council return of detailed comments on the draft Strategy: June
2025

3) Publication of final Strategy: October 2025

Consultation Analysis

35.

A statutory six week’s public consultation on the draft NYY-LNRS
will be delivered by NYC on behalf of the region, currently
timetabled to start in June 2025. This will be promoted by the
Council and open to representations by York residents and
community groups.



36.

Page 19

Subject to this decision, the Council will also coordinate and issue
formal Council representation to NYC on the draft NYY-LNRS in
June 2025.

Options Analysis and Evidential Basis

37.

38.

Report recommendation i- Support for public consultation on the
draft Strategy: An alternative option would be not to support a
public consultation but this was considered undesirable. The
Background section describes how the Council have been fully
involved and collaborated on the development of the strategy and
officers have not identified significant flaws or concerns during this
period. It is assessed here that NYC have also complied with
LNRS Regulations 2023 with respect to general content and
support authority involvement, so to object would likely fail
requirements under the regulations. Also, in supporting a public
consultation, this does not prevent the council making detailed
comments on the Strategy.

Report recommendation ii- The recommendation to delegate
detailed comments on the Strategy: An alternative option would be
to bring comments back as part of a further Executive Member
Decision Session (EMDS). However, this is made very difficult by
the limited statutory consultation time, and was also considered
undesirable because of the relatively low risks of the strategy and
relatively limited powers the Council has in the process. The
relatively long reporting process of EMDS would divert limited staff
resource into further report writing and this would shorten the
period of time for technical consideration and analysis.

Organisational Impact and Implications

39.

The implications are as follows:

a) Finance: There are no additional costs associated with the
recommendations set out in the report.

b) Legal: The procedure for the consultation and publication of
the Local Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS) is set out in the
Environment (Local Nature Recovery Strategies) (Procedure)
Regulations 2023. As a Supporting Authority the Council is
provided with the opportunity to object to the consultation of
the draft LNRS on the grounds set out at regulation 9 which
are reproduced in the body of the report. Any objection must



d)

f)

Page 20

be made within 28 days of receipt of the pre-consultation draft
LNRS. The Council may also provide their consent to the
public consultation of the draft. If the Council do nothing North
Yorkshire Council may consult on the draft LNRS after 28
days have elapsed from the date of the receipt of the pre-
consultation draft. If any objection is made, North Yorkshire
Council can seek a determination from the Secretary of State
as to whether the draft LNRS may be consulted on. There are
no further rights of appeal. Any decision made by the Council
or the Secretary of State may be challenged by way of judicial
review.

Environment and climate Action: Nature recovery is an
important element of achieving the ambitions of York’s
Climate Change Strategy for both net zero and being climate
ready. In particular, the Local Nature Recovery Strategy will
support delivery of our objectives relating the natural
environment: Increase tree planting; Increase carbon storage;
Promote sustainable land management and; Reduce the
impacts of extreme weather events and climate risks.

Human Resources (HR): No implications.
Procurement: No implications.

Health & Wellbeing: The LNRS will contribute to nature
recovery. Nature recovery will have a variety of beneficial
impacts on Health & Wellbeing. For instance: direct access to
nature for leisure; healthier air, land and water; improved food
production.

Affordability: No implications.
Equalities and Human Rights: No implications.
Data Protection and Privacy: No implications.

Communications: Communications support will be required
during public consultations.

Economy. LNRS will impact the economy at a high level by its
association with land use and practices. The economic affects
are unquantifiable for the purposes of this report, but are
intended to be beneficial in the long term, as part of an overall
sustainable economy.



Page 21

Risks and Mitigations

40.

4].

It is considered that it is appropriate to delegate consultation
comments on this strategy to officers because of the Strategy’s
high level nature; also it’s largely voluntary participation nature;
also because of the more limited role the Council has in the
production of NYY-LNRS. Overall this means the decision has a
relatively low level of council risk.

Should the Council decide not to support the draft publication of
the NYY-LNRS then the risk is delays to nature recovery, and legal
considerations as set out by LNRS Regulations 2023. The Council
has mitigated this risk by working closely with NYC during the
emerging strategy, to ensure officers are in a position to make the
positive recommendations within this report.

Wards Impacted

42.

All wards are impacted by the decisions and recommendations
contained within the report.



Contact details

Page 22

For further information please contact the authors of this Decision

Report.

Author
Name: James Gilchrist
Job Title: Director of Transport, Environment and Planning
Service Area: Transport, Environment and Planning
Telephone: 01904 552547
Report approved: Yes
Date: 9 May 2025

Co-author
Name: Guy Hanson
Job Title: Design and Conservation Manager
Service Area: Planning and Development Services
Telephone: 01904551319
Report approved: |Yes
Date: 9 May 2025

Background papers

None

Annexes
None




	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	5 North Yorkshire & York, Local Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS) consultation draft

